(103
North West
Leicestershire

District Counecil

Meeting ASSESSMENT SUB COMMITTEE
Time/Day/Date 10.00 am on Friday, 9 August 2013
Location Council Chamber, Council Offices, Coalville
Officer to contact Democratic Services Officer (01530 454512)
AGENDA
Iltem Pages

1 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN

2 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Members are requested to declare any interests connected to this matter and
to identify the nature of that interest as to whether it is pecuniary or non
pecuniary under the Code of Conduct.

4 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
Assessment Sub Committee to decide whether the press and public should be
excluded from the hearing and the grounds for the exclusion based on
representations from all parties.

5 ALLEGATIONS OF A FAILURE TO OBSERVE THE CODE OF CONDUCT

Report of the Head of Legal and Support Services 3-32

Circulation:
Councillor Annette Bridges

Councillor Caroline Large
Councillor Ray Woodward

NWLDC PO Box 11051, Coalville, LE67 OFW | 01530 454545 | www.nwleics.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5

NOT FOR PUBLICATION

Likely to contain exempt information under paragraph 1to Schedule 12A Local

Government Act 1972

NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

ASSESSMENT SUB-COMMITTEE - 9 AUGUST 2013

Title of report

ALLEGATIONS OF A FAILURE TO OBSERVE THE CODE OF
CONDUCT

Contacts

Head of Legal and Support Services
01530 454762
elizabeth.warhurst@nwleicestershire.gov.uk

Purpose of report

1. To consider the report of the Head of Legal and Support
Services and Monitoring Officer.

2. To request that the Assessment Sub-committee determine
what action should be taken.

Implications:

Financial/Staff

Link to relevant CAT
Risk Management

Equalities Impact
Assessment

Human Rights

Transformational
Government

There will be resource implications if the matter proceeds to
investigation. The costs of an investigation can be met from
existing budgets.

N/A

N/A

N/A

The Act and Regulations thereunder have taken account of human
rights.

The complainant may request a review of the decision of the
Assessment Sub-committee to be heard by the Review Sub-
committee.

Consultees

N/A

Background papers

Local Government Act 2000 (www.opsi.gov.uk).

Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007
(Wwww.opsi.gov.uk).

Localism Act 2011 (www.legislation.gov.uk)

Arrangements adopted by Council on 26 June 2012.

NWLDC Local Assessment of Complaints Guidance.



mailto:elizabeth.warhurst@nwleicestershire.gov.uk

Recommendations FINDING ON THE COMPLAINT AS SET OUT AT PARAGRAPH
5 OF THE REPORT.

1. COMPLAINT

1.1 On 1 May 2013 the Monitoring Officer received a complaint from Councillor Legrys

1.2

1.3

14

15

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

regarding Councillor Cotterill, both members of North West Leicestershire District
Council. A copy of the complaint together with the election leaflet referred to is
attached at Appendix 1.

The leaflet relates to the distribution of an election leaflet by Hugglescote and
Donington le Heath Parish Councillor Eynon in her campaign for a Leicestershire
County Council seat in the May 2013 County Council Election. In his election leaflet it
is alleged by Councillor Cotterill that Councillor Eynon’s election leaflet was distributed
with the Parish Council newsletter.

In summary the complaint is that the content of Councillor Cotterill's leaflet is untrue
and that Councillor Cotteril’s conduct in producing and distributing the leaflet brings
the District Council into disrepute. Councillor Legrys is married to Councillor Eynon.

Councillor Eynon remains a member of Hugglescote and Donington le Heath Parish
Council and was elected to the County Council seat for the Coalville Division

Under the arrangements for dealing with complaints adopted by Council on 26 June
2012, there is an opportunity, at the beginning of the complaints process, for the
Monitoring Officer to work with parties to ascertain whether an informal resolution of
the complaint is possible. A copy of NWLDC Arrangements for dealing with complaints
is attached at Appendix 2.

OUTCOME OF INFORMAL RESOLUTION

In accordance with the adopted arrangements the Monitoring Officer has attempted an
informal resolution of the complaint. Unfortunately, this has not been successful. Itis
worth noting that whilst informal resolution has not been possible, both parties have
engaged and been co-operative in the process.

The Monitoring Officer met with Councillor Legrys on 22 May 2013. Councillor
Woodward accompanied Councillor Legrys. A summary note of that meeting is
attached at Appendix 3.

The Monitoring Officer met with Councillor Cotterill on 10 June 2013. A summary note
of that meeting is attached at Appendix 4.

The Monitoring Officer e-mailed Councillor Legrys on 10 June 2013 setting out the
outcome of the meeting on 10 June 2013. Councillor Legrys discussed the issue with
the Labour Group and he responded on 26 June to say that he wished to proceed with
the process. Copies of the e-mails to Councillor Legrys are attached at Appendix 5.

The Monitoring Officer kept Councillor Cotterill informed during the process. Copies of
e-mails are attached at Appendix 6.

THAT THE ASSESSMENT SUB-COMMITTEE MAKES A




2.6

2.7

3.1

4.1

5.1

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

Following the meetings, the outcome which Councillor Legrys expressed he was
seeking from the complaint and the views expressed by Councillor Cotterill, the
Monitoring Officer concluded that informal resolution would not be possible.

The Monitoring Officer is therefore requesting that the Assessment Sub-committee
consider the matter and determine what steps to take.

INITIAL TESTS

Councillor Cotterill is a current serving member of North West Leicestershire District
Council. He was in office at the time of the conduct complained of. The complaint of
bringing the office into disrepute, if proven, would be a breach of the Code of Conduct.

INFORMATION FROM THE COMPLAINANT AND SUBJECT MEMBER

In accordance with the Council’s adopted arrangements the complainant and subject
members are not party to the Assessment Sub-committee. The Monitoring Officer has
sought their views on the matter and any further information provided by either
Councillor Legrys or Councillor Cotterill will be reported to the Sub-committee.

ASSESSMENT OUTCOMES

The following outcomes are available to the Sub-committee under the Arrangements
adopted by Council:

5.1.1 Refer the complaint to the Monitoring officer to take other action.
5.1.2 Request further information from the parties.

5.1.3 Refer the complaint to the Monitoring Officer for investigation.
5.1.4 No action to be taken in respect of the complaint.

CONSIDERATION AS TO WHETHER THE HEARING SHOULD BE HELD IN
PRIVATE

Under the Council’s Arrangements there is a presumption in favour of the hearing
being held in public unless it is considered appropriate for it to be held in private.

In considering this aspect of the hearing the Committee need to consider what
information is being presented before them.

The complaint centres on an accusation that relates to Councillor Cotterill’'s election
leaflet and its distribution by the Parish Council. Those leaflets are in the public
domain to an extent as they were delivered to some properties in the Coalville Division.
Further, the matter was reported in the Coalville Times dated 3 May 2013 which was
available on 2 May 2013. A copy of the article is attached at Appendix 7. As such it is
arguable that the main evidence of the complaint is already within the public domain.

However, contained within the papers is an as yet unsubstantiated complaint which
may impact upon the reputation of the members concerned both as the complainant
and the subject member.



6.5

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

The Sub-committee may feel that in light of this, the hearing should be held in private
in order to protect the reputation of all parties and that the public interest in maintaining
the public’s confidence in its members outweighs the public interest in publicising an as
yet unsubstantiated claim. The Sub-committee will need to make this decision at the
start of the meeting.

REVIEW OF THE DECISION OF THE ASSESSMENT SUB COMMITTEE

The Assessment Sub-committee has the authority to allow or not a right of review of
their decision to take no further action.

However, the complainant should be advised that no review will be granted unless
further / additional evidence is submitted to the Monitoring Officer. It will be the
decision of the Monitoring Officer as to whether such additional evidence warrants
another assessment.

This is to ensure a fair process and to avoid frivolous / vexatious appeals.

A request for review can be made at the time the Sub-committee makes its
determination or within 30 days of the decision.

r149jf



APPENDIX 1

<rom: john Legrys [ NG
sent: 01 May 2013 16:49
To: ELIZABETH WARHURST

Cc: CHRISTINE FISHER; Leon Spence
Subject: Formal Compliant Against Councillor Cotterill

Good afternoon

You maybe aware that my wife Dr Terri Eynon spoke to Mel Phillips this morning about a misleading
election leaflet that Councillor Cotterill has been distributing within the Coalville Division.

Mel promptly forwarded the leaflet to the Police - and during the day they have been interviewing
individuals named on the leaflet. My understanding is that the Election Commission have seen and

commented to the Police about the leaflet.
Likewise the Labour Party nationally are taking and making appropriate advice.

As other parties are involved with the distribution of the leaflet - my compliant centres on the words that
mentions Clir Cotterill as a District Councillor - and by doing so brings the District Council into disrepute.

\

| can provide formal evidence that the allegation that Parish precept funding paid for the production and
distribution of the leaflet as untrue.

| have been reluctant during the day to make a formal Standards compliant bearing in mind workload -
however following advice from my colleagues | now feel that there is no option other than to ask
Standards to consider that the Council has been brought into disrepute.

| look forward to your response.

John Legrys






URGENT !

‘Before you vote...

PSR D7 R SO RS
PUSTAITIR, R L



——— i

Councillors resign from Parish Council amid misuse of fundg row

Councillor John Cotterill, District Councillor for the H ugglescote & Ellistown Ward has announced hi
resignation from Hugglescote Parish Council, along with Independent Councillors Stephen Palmer &
Stephen Watson. It is believed other Councillors are'also considering their position following
allegations that one of its members has misused funds to deliver political literature in the run up+to the

County Council elections in May,
ClIr Cotterill tendered his resigixa.‘tion on Tuesday 23" April following a meeting where several reports

were made of Labour County Council leaflets promoting Parish Councillor Terri Eynon were distribute
alongside Parish Council notices. The Parish Council had paid for the distribution of the Parish Notices.

The North West Leicestershire Conservative Association understands a complaint has been made to the
clectoral commission regarding this matter by a candidate of another political party.

Cllr Cotterill said ‘I am appalled that political material has been distributed alongside parish notices v *1
for by the taxpayer. I find it extraordinarily naive that a candidate could do this and think it s
acceptable. Having spoken to fellow councillors who are not affiliated to a political party, it is clear that
they foel the same. This is a ss misuse of the charged to the residents of Hugglescote,”

Clir Cotterill continued *I understand a complaint has been made to the electoral commission on the
matter and I trust it will be properly investigated * '

Promoted w:bmammrmw&ﬁmwmm House, 14A The Green, Ashby de Ia Zouch, Leics, LEGS 13U

0 P S X
3 I'A;'."\

= e —— e ———r. - .
——— T -~

10



APPENDIX 2
NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL CONSTITUTION

NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL ARRANGEMENTS
FOR DEALING WITH STANDARDS ALLEGATIONS UNDER THE
LOCALISM ACT 2011

1. Context

These “Arrangements” set out how a person may make a complaint that an
elected or co-opted member of this authority or of a Town or Parish Council
has failed to comply with the Member's Code of Conduct, and sets out how
the authority will deal with allegations of a failure to comply with that Code.

Under Section 28(6) and (7) of the Localism Act 2011, the Council must have
in place “Arrangements” under which allegations that a member or co-opted
member of the authority or Town or Parish Council, or of a Committee or Sub-
Committee of the authority, has failed to comply with the Code of Conduct can
be investigated and decisions made on such allegations.

These arrangements also provide for the authority to appoint at least one
Independent Person, whose views must be sought before a decision on an
allegation is made and which it has decided shall be investigated, and whose
views can be sought by the authority at any other stage, or by a member
against whom an allegation has been made.

2. The Code of Conduct

The Council has adopted a Code of Conduct for members, which is available
for inspection on the authority’s website and on request from Reception at the
Civic Offices.

[This Code applies to all Councils within the District, including Town and
Parish Councils.]

3. Making a complaint
If you wish to make a complaint, please write or email to:
“The Monitoring Officer
North West Leicestershire District Council
Council Offices
Coalville
Leicestershire
LE67 3FJ"
Or:
Elizabeth.warhurst@nwleicestershire.gov.uk

The Monitoring Officer is a senior officer of the authority who has statutory
responsibility for maintaining the register of members’ interests and who is

fl Revised: 12 June 2012



NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL CONSTITUTION

responsible for administering the system in respect of complaints of member
misconduct.

In order to ensure that all the information required is available with the
complaint, the complainant will be asked to provide their name and a contact
address or email address together with any relevant documents in support of
their complaint.

The Monitoring Officer will acknowledge receipt of the complaint within 5
working days of receiving it.

Where an anonymous complaint is received or the complainant wishes to
remain anonymous it will be at the Monitoring Officer's discretion as to
whether the complaint proceeds. Consideration will be given to the public
interest and whether the complaint can be justified or determined without the
complainant’s participation.

4. What happens to my complaint?

The Monitoring Officer will review every complaint received and, after
consultation with the Independent Person, take a decision as to whether it
merits further examination. This decision will normally be taken within 14 days
of receiving the complaint.

Once the Monitoring Officer and the Independent Person have taken a
decision, they will inform the complainant of that decision and the reasons for

that decision.

Where a complaint is determined to be merit further examination, the subject
member will be notified of the complaint at the earliest opportunity and
requested to attend a meeting with the Monitoring Officer and the
Independent Person to review the complaint and present their side of the
case.

Where they require additional information in order to come to a decision, the
Monitoring Officer may refer back to the complainant for such information, and
may request information from the member against whom the complaint is
directed. [Where the complaint relates to a Parish Councillor, the Monitoring
Officer may also inform the Parish Council of the complaint and seek the
views of the Parish Council before deciding whether the complaint merits
further examination.] '

In appropriate cases, the Monitoring Officer and the Independent Person may
seek to resolve the complaint informally, without the need for further review.
Such informal resolution may involve the member accepting that his/her
conduct was unacceptable and offering an apology, or other remedial action
by the authority. Where the member or the authority make a reasonable offer
of local resolution, but the complainant or subject member are not willing to

12 Revised: 12 June 2012



(a)

(c)

NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL CONSTITUTION

accept that offer, the Monitoring Officer may take account of this in deciding
whether the complaint merits further examination.

5. What if Informal Resolution is not appropriate/successful?

In cases where Informal Resolution is not appropriate or successful the
Monitoring Officer and the Independent Person may conduct a fact-finding
exercise to establish the groundwork for the complaint. The fact-finding
exercise is to satisfy the initial tests of:

it is a complaint against one or more named members of the Council;

the named member was in office at the time of the alleged conduct and the
Code of Conduct was in force at the time;

the complaint, if proven would be a breach of the Code under which the
Member was operating at the time of the alleged misconduct.

If on conducting the fact-finding exercise, there are no facts determined or the
complaint is deemed to be frivolous/vexatious, the Monitoring Officer will
notify the complainant and the subject member that there is “no case to
answer” and the matter will cease. There is no right of review of this decision
unless new evidence is presented in support of the complaint. It will be at the
discretion of the Monitoring Officer and the Independent Person to determine
whether such new evidence substantiates further examination.

Where facts are established the Monitoring Officer in conjunction with the
Independent Person will prepare a report for the Assessment Sub-Committee
who will determine the further steps to be taken in relation to the complaint.
The report will detail all steps taken by the Monitoring Officer and the
Independent Person prior to the Sub Committee.

The Assessment Sub-Committee is subject to the normal Committee rules in
relation to public meetings and it will take a decision at the start of the meeting
to determine whether it is appropriate to hold the meeting in closed session.

The complainant and the Subject Member will not be present at the meeting
but their views will have been sought prior to the meeting to enable their
opinions to be presented.

If, on assessment of the facts, the Sub-Committee determines that no further
action is required or there is no case to answer, this will be reported back to
the complainant and the subject member who may be given leave by the
Committee to appeal the decision. Such appeal will only be granted where
there is new evidence in relation to the complaint.

There may be instances where the Sub-Committee consider the action of the
subject member to be so serious as to warrant criminal investigation. In such

§3 Revised: 12 June 2012



NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL CONSTITUTION

circumstances, the Sub-Committee will instruct the Monitoring Officer to refer
the matter to the appropriate body for investigation.

Should the Committee determine that the matter warrants a detailed
investigation, the Monitoring Officer will appoint an Investigating Officer, who
may be another senior officer of the authority, an officer of another authority or
an external investigator. The Investigating Officer will decide whether he/she
needs to meet or speak to the complainant to understand the nature of the
complaint and will provide an opportunity for the complainant to explain their
understanding of events and suggest what documents the Investigating
Officer needs to see, and who the Investigating Officer needs to interview.

In exceptional cases, where it is appropriate to keep identities confidential or
disclosure of details of the complaint to the member might prejudice the
investigation, the Monitoring Officer can delete names and addresses from
the papers given to the member, or delay notifying the member until the
investigation has progressed sufficiently.

At the end of his/her investigation, the Investigating Officer will produce a draft
report and will send copies of that draft report, in confidence, to the
complainant and to the member concerned, to give them both an opportunity
to identify any matter in that draft report with which they disagree or consider
requires more consideration.

Having received and taken account of any comments, the Investigating Officer
will send his/her final report to the Monitoring Officer.

6. What happens if the Investigating Officer concludes that there is no
evidence of a failure to comply with the Code of Conduct?

On completing their investigation the Investigating Officer will present their
report to the Determinations Sub-Committee who will take into account the
facts and evidence produced.

The Determinations Sub-Committee is subject to the normal Committee rules
in relation to public meetings and it will take a decision at the start of the
meeting to determine whether it is appropriate to hold the meeting in closed
session.

If satisfied that the Investigating Officer's report is sufficient, the
Determinations Sub Committee will accept the findings of the report and
request the Monitoring Officer to write to the complainant and to the member
concerned notifying them that they are satisfied that no further action is
required, and provide a copy of the Investigating Officer’s final report. If the
Monitoring Officer is not satisfied that the investigation has been conducted
properly, they may ask the Investigating Officer to reconsider his/her report.

14 Revised: 12 June 2012



NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL CONSTITUTION

There may be instances where the Determinations Sub Committee wishes to
ask questions of the complainant and the subject member in order to fully
understand the circumstances of the complaint. Where this is requested by
the Sub Committee, the meeting will be adjourned to enable the attendance of
all parties. In such a situation, the Sub Committee will be conducted in a
manner similar to court proceedings where each party may present their
arguments.

At the end of the Committee the Chair will ask the subject member whether
they are happy for the outcome of the matter to be published through public
notice/press statement. It will be at the discretion of the subject member
whether such action is taken.

What happens if the Investigating Officer concludes that there is
evidence of a failure to comply with the Code of Conduct?

Where the investigating officer has determined that there is a breach of the
code of conduct they will present their report to the Determinations Sub
Committee.

The Monitoring Officer will conduct a “pre-hearing process”, requiring the
member to give his/her response to the Investigating Officer’s report, in order
to identify what is likely to be agreed and what is likely to be in contention at
the hearing, and the Chair of the Hearings Panel may issue directions as to
the manner in which the hearing will be conducted.

At the Sub Committee, the Investigating Officer will present his/her report, call
such witnesses as he/she considers necessary and make representations to
substantiate his/her conclusion that the member has failed to comply with the
Code of Conduct. For this purpose, the Investigating Officer may ask the
complainant to attend and give evidence to the Sub Committee. The member
will then have an opportunity to give his/her evidence, to call witnesses and to
make representations to the Sub Committee as to why he/she considers that
he/she did not fail to comply with the Code of Conduct.

The Sub Committee, with the benefit of any advice from the Monitoring Officer
and an Independent Person, may conclude, in disagreement with the
investigation officer that the member did not fail to comply with the Code of
Conduct, and so dismiss the complaint. If the Sub Committee concludes that
the member did fail to comply with the Code of Conduct, the Chair will inform
the meeting of this finding and the Sub Committee will then consider what
action, if any, should be taken as a result of the member’s failure to comply
with the Code of Conduct. In doing this, the Sub Committee will give the
member an opportunity to make representations to the Panel and will consult
the Independent Person (and if appropriate the Parish Council), but will then
decide what action, if any, to take in respect of the matter.

What action can the Hearings Panel take where a member has failed to
comply with the Code of Conduct?

§5 Revised: 12 June 2012



NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL CONSTITUTION

The Council has delegated to the Audit and Governance Committee such of
its powers to take action in respect of individual members as may be
necessary to promote and maintain high standards of conduct. Accordingly
the Committee may:

e Issue a formal letter to the member found to have breached the Code.
o Impose Formal censure.
° Make recommendations to Full Council to remove the member from

committee(s) and other appointments subject to political balance
requirements (where there are political groups, the decision could only
be to recommend them to change their nominated appointees).

o A press release and other appropriate publicity.
o Recommend Training.
. Recommendation to Group Leader to remove the member from

committee(s) and other appointments.

The Committee has no power to suspend or disqualify the member or to
withdraw members’ or special responsibility allowances.

[In relation to Parish Members, the Monitoring Officer can only make
recommendations for sanctions against those Members. The responsibility for
enforcing those sanctions will fall to the Parish Council as a whole with the
assistance and guidance from the Monitoring Officer.]

9. What happens at the end of the hearing?

At the end of the hearing, the Chair will state the decision of the Committee as
to whether the member failed to comply with the Code of Conduct and as to
any actions which the Committee resolves to take.

As soon as reasonably practicable thereafter, the Monitoring Officer shall
prepare a formal decision notice in consultation with the Chair of the
Committee, and send a copy to the complainant, to the member [and to the

Parish Council].
10. Who are the Committees?

The Assessment and Determinations Sub Committees are Sub-Committee of
the Council's Audit and Governance Committee. The Audit and Governance
Committee has decided that it will comprise of ten members of the Council,
plus one co-opted Parish Member and the Independent Person. Subject to
those requirements, it is appointed on the nomination of party group leaders in
proportion to the strengths of each party group on the Council.

18 Revised: 12 June 2012



NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL CONSTITUTION

The Independent Person is invited to attend all meetings of the Committee
and the Sub Committees and their views are sought and taken into
consideration before any decision is taken on whether the member’'s conduct
constitutes a failure to comply with the Code of conduct and as to any action
to be taken following a finding of failure to comply with the Code of Conduct.
There may be more than one Independent Person involved throughout the
complaint depending on whether they have been conflicted out of sitting on
the Committee/Sub Committee due to being approached by the Complainant
or Subject Member for assistance throughout the process.

11.  Who is the Independent Person?
The Independent Person is a person who has applied for the post following
advertisement of a vacancy for the post, and is appointed by a positive vote
from a majority of all the members of Council.

A person cannot be “independent” if he/she:

11.1 is, or has been within the past 5 years, a member, co-opted member or
officer of the authority;

11.2 [is or has been within the past 5 years, a member, co-opted member or officer
of a parish council within the authority’s area], or

11.3 is a relative, or close friend, of a person within paragraph 11.1 or 11.2 above.
For this purpose, “relative” means:

11.3.1 spouse or civil partner,

11.3.2 living with the other person as husband and wife or as if they were
civil partners;

11.3.3 grandparent of the other person;
11.3.4 a lineal descendent of a grandparent of the other person;

11.3.5 a parent, sibling or child of a person within paragraphs 11.3.1 or
1)l

11.3.6 a spouse or civil partner of a person within paragraphs 11.3.3, 11.3.4
or11.3.5; or

11.3.7 living with a person within paragraphs 11.3.3, 11.3.4 or 11.3.5 as
husband and wife or as if they were civil partners.

12. Revision of these arrangements

17 Revised: 12 June 2012



NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL CONSTITUTION

The Council may by resolution agree to amend these arrangements, and has
delegated to the Monitoring Officer in consultation with the Independent
Person the right to depart from these arrangements where he/she considers
that it is expedient to do so in order to secure the effective and fair
consideration of any matter.

13. Appeals
The Sub Committees have authority to allow, or not, a right of review following
the Assessment Sub Committee’'s determination of the complaint, and
following the determination of the complaint by the Determination Sub
Committee. The process follows one similar to the court process, where
Members be given leave to appeal a decision taken on their matter. That in
order to avoid frivolous appeals, a stance of “unless new evidence is
submitted/provided there will be no review”.
A right of review would be given against a decision of No Further Action by
the Assessment Sub Committee and any decision and against any sanction
determined or imposed by the Determinations Sub Committee.
Such request for a review to be received within 28 days of the decision by the
relevant Sub Committee.

Appendix One The authority’s Code of Conduct

Appendix Two Flowchart of procedure

Appendix Three Informal Resolution Procedure

18 Revised: 12 June 2012



NORTH WEST LEICESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL CONSTITUTION

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

MEMBER COMPLAINT PROCEDURE
[ COMPLAINT RECEIVEﬂ
n
[ YES J - [INFORMAL RESOLUT(ON]
S . =
[ RESOLVED ] ‘ [ NO ]
. . =
[ YES ] [ FACT-FINDING EXERCﬂ
. = . .
[ NO FURTHER ACTION ] ( CASETO ANSWERJ ‘ ( NO ] ‘ ( NO FURTHERACTI0N4]
- .

[ YES
REFER FOR
INVESTIGATION
_J

[FORMAL INVESTIGATION )

7

REPORT OF

INVESTIGATOR
. J

N

(" DETERMINATION SUB |
COMMITTEE

[ CASE TO ANSWER

S

()

.

-

1

|

[ YES ]
REPORT TO
ASSESSMENT SUB

]- { CASETO ANSWERJ — [ NO

[ REVIEW COMMITTEE ]

. 8

COMMITTEE

]-[ CRIMINAL REFERRAL ]

. S

] =) W) FURTHER ACTION ]
. B

[ REVIEW COMMITTEE ]

[ NO

COMMITTEE
DETERMINE
ALLEGATION

] =) [ NO FURTHER ACTION ] -) [ REVIEW commmesj
J ‘ [ SANCTION ] ‘ [ REVIEW ]

19

1 Revised: 12 June 2012



I L
o - B [
N ] - N I
- ) . .
B " '
W | '
] N ) I "
a
- -
- I
| B
. -
'-l
i
<
L . ‘ -
v . -
1 R . -
- I I I . -
[ ,-‘ :. -
1 "
- ] -
- ) -
I
7 i o .
1 B - -y " .
L9 | = ul
- r
- .
. | _ B N N ¥
N o ' B
1
-
. | " S -
d . ) : -t . 1 '
. T N 5
B - " ) 1! -
. r1 = o ~ - 0
- i - . )
- ] - 1 2
-
) -, : - e
e - E & |
R T B '— 1 h. = =y ‘I ' i
" m S o ] = = i ]
- 1 L, "
K N Y T " L] v
] - 1
— - : - -
o} W - - i
- i lmhf'nful‘h" II 1 at ek ] y
il e Bl - - sl

f -




APPENDIX 3

NOTES OF A MEETING WITH COUNCILLOR LEGRYS AND
COUNCILLOR WOODWARD

22 MAY 2013

COMPLAINT RE COUNCILLOR COTTERILL

Councillor Legrys summarised his concerns as follows.

An allegation had been made by a (now) former Hugglescote and Donington ie Heath Parish
Councillor, Mr Palmer, that the Parish Council were paying for the distribution of election
leaflets and endorsing the leaflets and candidacy of Parish Councillor Eynon for the County
Council seat. Mr Palmer alleged that the printing and distribution of the leaflet was paid for
by the Parish Council. These allegations were made in e-mail correspondence between
(then) Councillor Palmer, Councillor Cotterill and (then) Councillor Watson.

Councillor Palmer complained to the Parish Clerk and requested that the matter be
discussed at the next Parish Council meeting, at the end of the formal meeting.

Councillor Legrys was not at the meeting but said that the allegations had been put to
Councillor Eynon at the end of the meeting by Councillor Palmer. Councillor Eynon had
rebuffed the allegations and said that if other members required evidence in support of this,
bills, etc, it was freely available. Councillor Eynon did not know that the issue was to be
raised at the meeting.

Councillor Legrys explained that the leaflet had been distributed by the same distribution
company as the Parish newsletter. It had been delivered folded up inside the newsletter,
alongside other leaflets advertising local businesses such as the local Indian takeaway.

Councillor Legrys’ understanding was that this had been explained to councillors at the
meeting and they had accepted the explanation. Councillor Eynon had said she felt
“ambushed” and was very upset by the incident.

The next day there began to circulate a series of e-mails between the Clerk, councillors and
including Councillor Eynon. Councillors Palmer, Watson and Cotterill resigned from the
Parish Council. Councillor Legrys understood that the Parish Clerk had tried to intervene
and persuade the members not to resign. This was not successful.

Councillor Eynon then received an e-mail from the Coalville Times on 26 April 2013 (the
Friday prior to the election). It contained a press statement from Councillor Cotterill, the
wording of which reflected the content of the leaflet. The Labour Party had issued a rebuttal
which the Coalville Times used and Councillor Cotterill's initial statement was edited to
remove some of the “inflammatory” words. The article ran on election day, 2 May 2013.

The Labour Party had been notified by a local resident on 30 April 2013 that Councillor
Cotterill was delivering the leaflets in Donington le Heath. Councillor Legrys said the
resident was horrified and wanted action taken.

Councillor Legrys felt that the situation was known about in the local community and was
discussed. A number of people had said to him that they were “horrified” by the leaflet.

21



Councillor Legrys said that when the Labour Party representatives had been door knocking
in the district, members of the public had raised their general concerns about corruption at
the Council, about “dirty deals” being done, especially in planning matters. The Labour Party
had been working to improve that perception and this issue had damaged that. The matter
had been referred to the Police and the Electoral Commission.

A number of members of the public had expressed concerns regarding officer and member
corruption. He knew this was not true and this was a misplaced, albeit firm, belief. He felt
that the leaflet was intended to cast aspersions about the Labour Party and it confirmed the
public perception of corruption. He was concerned that the wording in the leaflet could be
used over and over again, if not corrected.

The outcome that Councillor Legrys was seeking from the complaint was:

- that the issue be fully investigated;
- that this investigation be done by an independent external person.

He understood that the sanctions available to the Council, if a breach of the Code was
proven, was limited. However, this was about putting the record straight. Councillor Legrys
confirmed he was happy for the Monitoring Officer to meet with Councillor Cotterill.

m117jf

22



APPENDIX 4

NOTES OF A MEETING WITH COUNCILLOR COTTERILL
10 JUNE 2013
COMPLAINT FROM COUNCILLOR LEGRYS

The Monitoring Officer explained the nature of the complaint from Councillor Legrys.
Councillor Cotterill offered the following explanation / information.

Councillor Otter, a Hugglescote and Donington le Heath Labour Parish Councillor, had
arranged for the inclusion of Councillor Eynon’s leaflet inside the Parish Council newsletter.
Councillor Otter was responsible for the arrangements and production of the Parish Council
newsletter. It had happened before when, a few months ago, a leaflet had been included
with the newsletter which was along the lines of “your Labour parish councillors are ...." and
named them.

Councillor Cotterill said that by including Councillor Eynon’s leaflet within the magazine, it
gave the impression that the Parish Council supported the candidate. The Monitoring Officer
explained that Councillor Legrys’ understanding was that the leaflet had been paid for
separately and had, coincidentally, been distributed by the same courier. The courier had,
for efficiency, chosen to fold all the leaflets (including for food and other businesses) inside
the newsletter when it had been posted through the letter boxes.

Councillor Cotterill said that the matter was discussed at the Parish Council meeting before
the elections. After the discussion councillors left the room. Councillor Palmer and
Councillor Legrys had a discussion about it in the kitchen at the Parish Council offices.
Councillor Palmer repeated this conversation to Councillor Cotterill. It is suggested that
Councillor Legrys asked Councillor Palmer “what’s upset my wife’. Councillor Palmer had
told him. On Councillor Eynon joining them in the kitchen it is claimed that Councillor Legrys
said to her “l told you not to do this”.

Councillor Cotterill said that the Parish Council should have known about what was going out
with the newsletter. It should have been made clear to the distributer when the contract was

set up.

Councillor Cotterill disagreed that his leaflet brought this office into disrepute. The matter
had been referred to the Electoral Commission.

When asked what outcome he wished to see from this complaint, Councillor Cotterill said
that he supported the Standards regime, but not when it was used for a political tool. It was

being used for political purposes in this case. He declined to apologise as he felt the content
of his leaflet was accurate.

He had delivered about 500 of the leaflets.

The Monitoring Officer concluded the meeting and explained that she would inform
Councillor Legrys of Councillor Cotterill's position.

m118jf

23



- s 4
L
: (B IS
4 L
1
=
[
. _
: R4
- | =
N L
* v
O
Tig =

N 1
1
1
e .
; -
I -
- -
I
] . = b 1
“u - - I
1
0 ] '
. I 1
. = 1= =
o n L
L]
» -_—
v
I '
B Ly 5L DR =
-“ . "
=! | y
“r . I = .
- | | o " ~
B > womil -
([ - . i
N ™ ] .
[ ] = . ety "

S D (e e
__ A et T T O e e e
e ey e e ol T s e r...n.n,..;.u.m.i..q....-rn' —
. vy gt e S |,

Lat ] -

i\ : ®
i ~ = .
-- - ¥
- -
1 n joo o, 1l o |-
- n i
. n =
L - -
- . -
I . |
S L a5 T |
L [
I ' 1 ! - -
e - » - I'= R -
1 |
5 =
L .I a
" - -
[ " = -
-
» o I 1
h -
n ; . 1 n
- o 1 1 1l |
] - v - R
'
] — n B 1
- -
4 r
' . = L) =~ Fu
- - = »: i
. padi wihea '

3 B } il = 'Um el % Il"I
Hl. - _r-HI I.. -— “ .H'.l




APPENDIX 5

Sent: 26 June 201 v .

To: ELIZABETH WARHURST
Subject: Re: Complaint re Clir Cotterill

Sorry - I forgot to give you an answer

Having thought long and hard on the situation and your earlier comments, I continue to feel that the issue
should be considered by the appropriate process please -

JL

On 26 Jun 2013, at 17:01, ELIZABETH WARHURST
<ELIZABETH.WARHURST@NWLeicestershire.gov.uk> wrote:

Dear ClIr Legrys,

| wondered whether you had the opportunity to consider this matter. | do appreciate that you have
had an awful lot on in the last wéek or so and may not, given events, had the opportunity to discuss

the issue at the labour group meeting last week.

25



Kind Regards

Elizabeth

From ELIZABETH WARHURST

Sent: 17 June 2013 08:52

To: 'john Legrys'

Subject: RE: Complaint re Clir Cotterill

Dear Clir Legrys,

Thank you for your email. No need to apologise. |just thought it was unusual not to have heard
from you, so wanted to check that you had received the first email, that I'd used the nght email

address.

I'll wait to hear from you, following your meeting tonight.

Regards

Elizabeth

From: jon Legrys [N
Sent: 17 June 2013 06:42 .

To: ELIZABETH WARHURST

Subject: RE: Complaint re Clir Cotterill

Importance: High

Apologise for not replying sooner - | have been overwhelmed recently

| will consider your comments during the day and discuss with the Labour leadership
tonight at Group

Many thanks




From: ELIZABETH WARHURST
Sent: 10 June 2013 16:54

To: 'john Legrys'

Subject: Complaint re Clir Cotterill
Importance: High

Sensitivity: Confidential

Dear ClIr Legrys,

Further to our meeting on 22 May, | have now met with Clir Cotterill. | explained to Clir
Cotterill what your complaint was about. |took him through what you told me at the
meeting. In summary, Clir Cotterill said that the election leaflet should not have been
in/with the parish council newsletter, that the parish council should have taken steps to
know what was being sent with the news letter, that he had been factual about what
happened in his leaflet (about which you complain) and that he had not brought the council

into disrepute.
How would you like to proceed now?

You'll recall that | explained that, if a complaint is not able to be resolved informally, then |
will refer it to the Assessment Sub-committee. They will decide whether the complaint
should be investigated or no further action taken. In terms of taking the informal resolution
further — I have in the past arranged for the complainant and the subject member to meet
with me to discuss the complaint and see if they can agree the way forward. It would be
possible to ask the independent person to attend. Please can you advise what you would

like to do now?

| am around tomorrow for Cabinet if you would like to discuss then.

Kind Regards

Elizabeth

We're supporting local business by buying local. Local businesses can register for free at
www.buylocalgov.co.uk . Buying local is making it easier, simpler and quicker to do
business with North West Leicestershire District Council.

This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the
use of the individual or entity to whom they are addressed. If you have received this e-
mail in error please notify the originator of the message. This footer also confirms that
this e-mail message has been scanned for the presence of computer viruses.

Please note: Incoming and outgoing e-mail messages are routinely monitored for
compliance with North West Leicestershire District Council's policy on the use of
electronic communications. :

27



We're supporting local business by buying local. Local businesses can register for free at
www.buylocalgov.co.uk . Buying local is making it easier, simpler and quicker to do
business with North West Leicestershire District Council.

This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the
use of the individual or entity to whom they are addressed. If you have received this e-
mail in error please notify the originator of the message. This footer also confirms that
this e-mail message has been scanned for the presence of computer viruses.

Please note: Incoming and outgoing e-mail messages are routinely monitored for

compliance with North West Lelcestershire District Council's policy on the use of
electronic communications. :

28



APPENDIX 6
JULIE FINUCANE

From: ELIZABETH WARHURST

Sent: 26 June 2013 17:42

To: JOHN COTTERILL

Subject: FW: CONFIDENTIAL : Complaint

Dear Clir Cotterill,

I have just received a reply from Clir Legrys. He has asked that the matter proceed through the process. Asyou
both have opposing views on the issue, it would seem that informal resolution is not possible. | will ask for an
Assessment Sub-committee to be convened. It could be that due to availability of members and myself, the meeting

may take place in August.

As you know, | will explain to members the nature of the complaint, the steps that have been taken to informally
resolve the matter and the decisions available to them. Members can decide that no further action should be taken,

that the matter be investigated or that other action be taken.

I will update you further in due course. In the meantime, please do contact me if you would like to discuss further.

Kind Regards

Elizabeth

From: ELIZABETH WARHURST
Sent: 26 June 2013 17:08

To: JOHN COTTERILL

Subject: FW: CONFIDENTIAL : Complaint

Dear Clir Cotterill,

| wanted to update you on the complaint further to'your meeting with me on 10 June. Following our meeting |
emailed ClIr Legrys and explained your thoughts on the complaint. In summary, that you said that the election
leaflet should not have been in/with the parish council newsletter, that the parish council should have taken steps
‘o know what was being sent with the news letter, that you had been factual about what happened in the leaflet
leaflet and that you did not feel that you had brought the council into disrepute. | explained about the next steps in
the process, in terms of referral to the Assessment Sub-committee should informal resolution prove not to be
possible. 1asked how he wished to proceed. Clir Legrys has replied to say that he is considering the matter but has

not yet confirmed his view.
| have emailed him again today. | will update you as soon as | have something further to report.
Kind Regards

Elizabeth

From: ELIZABETH WARHURST
Sent: 22 May 2013 12:28

To: JOHN COTTERILL

Cc: JULIE FINUCANE

Subject: CONFIDENTIAL : Complaint

129



Dear Clir Cotterill,

| have received a complaint about you in connection with the leaflet which was produced and circulated around the
time of the County Elections entitled “councillors resign from parish council amid misuse of funds row”. The
complaint has been made by Clir Legrys under the Council’s code of conduct.

As you know, under the Arrangements for dealing with complaints, there is an opportunity at the start of a matter to
see whether the complaint can be resolved informally, without recourse to the Standards Committee process. The
complaint is at this stage. | have met with.the complainant today and would now like to meet with you please to

understand your view of the matter.

By copy of this email, i have asked Julie to contact you to arrange a mutually convenient time to meet. 1am on leave
for a few days next week, back in the office on Friday 31 May.

Kind Regards

Elizabeth

Norﬁ%Wes’c

LEICESTERSHIRE

BISTRICT COoOUKCI1

Elizabeth Warhurst
Head of Legal and Support Services and Monitoring Officer

Direct line: 015630 454762 . )
Email: elizabeth.warhurst@nwleicestershire.gov.uk
Web: www.nwieics.gov.uk




Ediorisl and Adveritising 01530 813101

GOUNGILLORS RESIGN OVER
MISUSED FUNDS ALLEGATION

B i findit extraordlnanly naive that a candidate could do this’ - Cotterill

By LOUISE STEEL

TWO councillors
have resigned from
Hugglescote Parish
Council following
alegations that one
of its members has
misused funds to
deliver political liter-
ature in the run up to
the County Council
elections.

Cauncillar John Cotterill,
Distviet Councillor for the
Hugglescote and Ellistoun

nativn along with
Indopendent  Councillor
Stephion Polmer after the
sllegations came tn light
lad"woek.

Other eounatlory are ulso
considenng their poaitivn.

Clir Cotterill tendered his
resignstion  on  Tuesday,
April 23, following a meew-
mg where aseveral reparis
were made of  Labour
County Council leafleta pro-
moting Parish Councillor
Terni Enyon, which were
distributed olongside

Fax No. 01530 871361

ward, announced his reeig- |8

John Cettoriii

Parish Council notices. The
parish council had paid for
the “distribulion of the
Parish Notices.

Cllr Cotterill said: “I aun
appalled  that  political
material has been distrib
oted  alongmide  parish
notieca paid for by the tux-
payer. 1 find it extramdi-
narily naive that a candi-
duta could duo this and think

Terd Enyon

itae acceptuble. Having spo-
ken to fellow couacillors
who are not affiliated to a
palitical party, it is clear
that they feel the same.
This ie & gross misuse of the
precept chargzed to the res:
dente of Hugglescote.

ITe added: “} understand

a complsint  hus

The Times, Friday, May 3, 2013

aiton con_ tho matter and [
truar it will be groporly
nventigatod ™ :
Coauvcillor Teorri Huyon
dafonded the allegationa, by
ptting thal sa with Yuny
other orpaniaation” palitical
pamm fre ‘\ofmuui
for Ie: distribution.

snd Danmsenn le Hagth
word 10 be delivered by the
same marketing organiso-
lion Gl dehivera @ non
palitical parish newsletier.

' “This conlraet was made
soparalely to the agrecment
this organisstion has with
the parish council

“We  regrer thut some
Councillors  doubt  the
sntegrity of the panish coun
< and wish ts malka it clear
that Labour party leaflots
awra printed, published and
delivered at party expense
and ubna cosl to the public.®

Hugglescowe Pariah
Council were not prepared
1 comument o1 the situation
at the time of going to
presa,

NEWS 3

TWO MEN
CHARGED

WITH
ROBBERY

TWO men have been
charged as part of an
Investigation Into a
robbery in Coalville.

The robbery hap-
pened in Broom Leys
Road at approximately
11,.30pm on Friday
March 29, when a 70-
year-old man was
attacked from behind
by two people. H s
hit on the head,
knocking him to the
ground, and his wallet
was taken.

The vietim was
treated in hospital for
cuts and brulsing.

Last Sunday, April
28, two men, aged 18
and 22.years-old,
were arrested in con-
nection with the inci-
dent and subseque
charged with robbe

They appea
before Loughboro
Magistrates Court on
Monday, April 29.

boen aude to Lhe
electoral  commie-

A DRIVER hee been left
in s eriticul condition fol-
lowing a road traffic colli-
sion in the Pansh of
Charley.

The colligion happened
at around  7.05am on
Friday April 26, 2013 vn
the B591 Copt Oak Road
)&gt south of Bawden

It involved o silver
Vauxhall Astra

received &crious injuries
and is currently st the
University Hospital of
Coventry and
Warwickshire in & eritical
condition.

Paul Bingham, the inves-
tigating officer, #aid: “A
JCR tractor and trailer
were in the area at the
time but not involved in

Driver left in critical
condition after crash

The driver of the Astrm

Detactive ‘Canstable

the collisiun.
“We
sp2ak 1 unyone who wit-
neszed the collision or
wilw wither seliicle before-
.hmd to ploase contaet

Anvaue with informa-
tion i seked to contact
DC 1288 Paul Bingham
on 101, or Crimestoppers,
which is
muus, on 0800 555 111.

would like 1o

freo and

ny-

HEAPS of advice aboot com-
posting i being made avail- st
able at & series of roadshows

Master composters will bo

oa hand te offer fiee advire

Museun beiween 124 on,

HEAPS OF ADVICE ON COMPOSTING

Snibston  Discovery

being held at a Cealville May 4, 5and 6.
atlrection Further dates erc (o be
bold on Wednesday, Msy 8 A

sod  Seturday,
between the same times,

All cvents are b taks place
st the museum'’s ‘Compost
Cumner’ in aid of Compoat

May * 11

* Sanderson
* Harlequin
* Crowson

* Blendworth
* Hardys

* Richard Barrle # Liberty

* Villa Nova

+ Willman
+ Montgorery
* Swatch Box

Made to measure curtains,
valances, pelments,
tie-backs and cushions,
etc. Velvets, prints and

plain fabrics by:

% Osborne &

¥ Prestigious Little

* Nina Campbell

* Voyage

* Clarke &
Clarke

+ Bill Beaumont
Textiles
% Sclon

AND MANY MORE

* All types of Tracks, Poles & Accessories

Co-ordinate your home with our Soft Fumishing Service

Call in and see our huge range of blinds
(hcluding Voﬂa(mn Vorbcnl Roman a;‘nd Pleated) together g

Week (May 6-12).

bl Vlyles and Paris train
ic athlete

Pap

BULLENS cOURTYAHII * MILL LANE MEWS
ASHBV-DE-I.A ZOUCH = TEL. 01530 411078

APPENDIX 7

agsfin, .,.f(.,z""-i gy
BRACH IN TIME

with Olympi

MANOR Housa School
pupils have trained with an
Olympic athlete.

Twa pupils from Ashby
Manor Houee achool are
jumping in at the deep end
to schieve their dream of
competing in fuhu-e O|ympm
Games.

Brother ond gisier Mylea
and Parie Haywood train
every Wednesday morping,
when moest of us arc jusi
waking up, In in the form of
haviog swimming lcssons

with Commonwealth a.nd
Olympic swimmer, Melanie
arshall.

Paris sxid: *J am really
Jooking forward worki
with an Olympic swimmer.
dont mind gettin up cxtm
eatly to train. been
swimming fince 1 vms three
and really love it”

Everyone at the Manoer
House School wishes every
success to Punw and Myles
and can't wait to see them
on Lelevigion,

GOT A STORY’ TELL THE TIMES ON 01530 £13101

Have you got any ald photographs you'd like to
share with readers of the
Ashby, Coalville and Swadlincote Times?

Have you got a mystery photo, need help
identfying people, places or dates?

Then dust off your pictures and send them to:

Back In Time, Times Office, Bridge Road,
Coalville, Lelcestershire LEG7 3QP

Pllotos will be looked after and returned
4 &







	Agenda
	5 ALLEGATIONS OF A FAILURE TO OBSERVE THE CODE OF CONDUCT
	Appendices




